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Q. What is your name and business address? 1 

A. My name is Rex Evans.  My business address is 527 East Capitol Avenue, 2 

Springfield, Illinois 62701. 3 

Q. Are you the same Rex Evans who has previously testified in ICC Docket No. 4 

05-0341? 5 

A. Yes, I am. 6 

Q. What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony in this proceeding? 7 

A.   The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to the testimony of Edward 8 

Doerk and present substantiating evidence as to why Peoples should be fined in 9 

this proceeding. 10 

Q. Did the rebuttal testimony of Edward Doerk offer or present any factual 11 

information indicating that Peoples did not violate Commission rules 12 

outlined in this docket? 13 

A. No. 14 

Q. Does anything mentioned in Edward Doerk’s rebuttal testimony change 15 

your recommendation regarding the amount of the penalty to be imposed 16 

on the Company? 17 

A. No.  18 

Q. On lines 15-16 of the rebuttal testimony of Edward Doerk he indicated that 19 

“The Company has found evidence of gas leaks in less than 0.6% of the 20 

inspections completed since January 2000”.  What is the number of leaks 21 

that this represents?   22 
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A. According to information provided by Peoples, Peoples has found 2,688 leaks 23 

during the required leakage surveys since January 2000.  I find this to be a 24 

significant number of leaks.  From a safety perspective, it is irresponsible to 25 

attempt to minimize the significance of nearly 2,700 natural gas leaks inside 26 

residential buildings in Chicago.   27 

Q. On lines 26-27 of the rebuttal testimony of Edward Doerk he indicated “The 28 

results of the ISI program so far have been dominated by findings of very 29 

low leak rates and, in most cases, the leaks have been minor.”  How many 30 

of the 2,688 leaks were minor? 31 

A. According to information provided by Peoples, they do not have a specific 32 

classification for inside minor leaks nor do they have quantitative criteria for 33 

inside minor leaks.  According to Peoples response to Staff data request RE-15, 34 

the cumulative experience of Supervisors of the workforce conducting the 35 

leakage inspections has been that the leaks have typically been found at fittings.  36 

The response stated that “[i]n these cases, instrument detection requires 37 

sampling at or very near the suspect fitting to verify the leak.”  38 

Q. Does the need to utilize instrument detection very near a fitting or the 39 

Company’s testimony that “in most cases, the leaks have been minor” 40 

affect your opinion about the gravity of the offense?  41 

A. No.  This information does not alter my conclusion that leakage surveys are 42 

critical to ensuring the safety and integrity of natural gas distribution systems.  43 

Leakage surveys are a necessary component in providing safe gas service.  44 

They provide natural gas facilities owners with an opportunity to repair leaks and 45 

thus avoid the potential for explosions which could result in the loss of lives or 46 
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property.  Moreover, the sensitivity of the equipment required to adequately 47 

conduct inside safety inspection is a clear indication that one purpose of the 48 

regulations is to find leaks of this nature.  The regulations do not permit paying 49 

attention and responding only to leaks that are not "minor."  The required 50 

equipment is sensitive enough to detect even quite small amounts of natural gas: 51 

requiring such sensitive gas detection equipment for an adequate inspection is 52 

an indication that it is inappropriate to minimize the importance of any detectable 53 

leaks by calling them "minor."  The regulations referenced are found in 49 CFR 54 

192.723.  55 

Q.  On line 18 of the rebuttal testimony of Edward Doerk, he indicates that 56 

“odorized gas can be detected by customers even in cases of small leaks.”  57 

Does odorized gas ensure all leaks will be reported? 58 

A. No, there is a risk that a gas leak can go undetected or unrecognized by a gas 59 

consumer.  It is even stated in Peoples Gas Service Department Manual Section 60 

11.4, item #8 of the “Ten Rules of Gas Leak Safety”, that “A gas leak can be 61 

masked by other odors.  Gas odorant can fade under unusual conditions.”  I have 62 

attached this document in its entirety to this testimony as Attachment A. 63 

Q. Is there anything else significant about Section 11 of the Peoples Gas 64 

Service Department Manual? 65 

A. Peoples, through Section 11, acknowledges the gravity of gas leaks and leak 66 

investigations.  In the Introduction, Section 11.1, the manual states that, “Leak 67 

investigation is one of the most important phases of gas service work.  It must be 68 

carried out promptly and properly to ensure the safety and maintain the 69 

confidence of the public in the use of gas.”    70 
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Q. On lines 18-21, Mr. Doerk states: “Most often customers become aware of 71 

potentially unsafe conditions well before the periodic inside safety 72 

inspections and call the Company’s 24 hour emergency telephone number 73 

seeking corrective action.  Do you find this to be compelling evidence in 74 

mitigation of the violation? 75 

A. No.  As stated above, one purpose of this requirement is to ensure that leaks that 76 

customers do not become aware of otherwise, are discovered during the leakage 77 

survey.   78 

Q. On lines 42-44 of the rebuttal testimony of Edward Doerk, he states that 79 

“The Company has had significant success with red disconnection notices 80 

mailed to non-responding customers.  Clearly, the Company has 81 

demonstrated good faith in seeking access to its facilities inside 82 

customers’ premises.”  Please comment. 83 

A. The time for Peoples to demonstrate good faith was in the years following the 84 

initial notification that Peoples was not in compliance with the regulation and 85 

before Staff found it necessary to file the May 20, 2005 Staff Report 86 

recommending the issuance of a citation.   87 

On January 10, 2000 when Staff sent Peoples a letter stating that a record audit 88 

indicated that Peoples was in violation of the leakage surveys, Staff requested 89 

that Peoples provide a written response outlining the corrective action Peoples 90 

would take, including starting and completion dates. (See Staff Ex. 1.0, Ex. C)  91 

The letter stated that approximately 117,353 in-house service lines and meters 92 

were not leak inspected within the mandatory 5 year time frame.   93 

Q. Did Peoples provide the requested written response? 94 
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A. Yes.  On March 24, 2000, Peoples responded with a commitment to complete 95 

75,000 inside safety inspection each year over the next 4 years.  (See Staff Ex. 96 

1.0, Ex. C) 97 

Q. Did Peoples show good faith in keeping its commitment? 98 

A. No.  As discussed in my direct testimony, Peoples averaged only 32,441 leak 99 

survey inspections on inside meters from 2000 through 2004.  100 

 Peoples did not bring itself into compliance over that five year period.  In fact, 101 

even now, according to Mr. Doerk’s rebuttal testimony, Peoples projects that it 102 

will still have “less than 20,000” inside inspections uncompleted nearly six years 103 

after this violation was brought to Peoples’ attention.  104 

Q. What is your recommendation to the Commission regarding Peoples’ good 105 

faith? 106 

As I previously testified, if their actions since early 2000 are any indication at all, 107 

Peoples only became serious about achieving compliance with federal and State 108 

rules once faced with the probability they were going to be fined for their actions.  109 

Peoples did not start sending red disconnection notices until June 2005, which is 110 

well after this proceeding began.  Peoples had five full calendar years to develop 111 

the programs and efforts necessary in order to achieve compliance with 112 

regulations.  If the Company would have demonstrated any significant good faith 113 

in its compliance efforts, the inspections could, based on their efforts since earlier 114 

this year, very likely have been completed and up-to-date some time ago and this 115 

docket would not be necessary. 116 
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I recommend that the Commission make a finding that Peoples has exhibited a 117 

lack of good faith in its attempts to comply with the requirements for inside 118 

leakage surveys. 119 

Q.  Does this conclude your rebuttal testimony? 120 

A.  Yes it does. 121 

 122 

 123 
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